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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

KOLKATA, NEW DELHI

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF
BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NtI/s BALLY IUTE COMPANY
LIMITED ("the company"'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the
statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of Cash Flow and notes to the financial
statements, for the year ended 31't March 2024, including a sufirnary of material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, except for the possible effect of matter described in the basis for qualified opinion
section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the marurer so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,

2024, and Profit and its cash flow for the year endecl on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) Attention is invited to Nofe No. 1 Point (Xl)(b) of statement of material Accounting
Policies regarding Gratuity provided as an expenses in the statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which the payment for the same has been made, which
constitutes a departure from the Accounting Standard 15 - " Employee Benefits "
including disclosure requirement under the said standard. The impact of the same in
the Financial Statements is disclosed in Nofe No. 26

b) Attention is invited to Note No. 31 of the financial Statements regarding preparation
of accounts as per Accounting Standard (AS) issued by ICAI instead of Ind AS in
view of company made applications for delisting of shares to Stock Exchange. The
impact of the same on the reported financials remains unascertained.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standar'ds are

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together wi
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
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the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there uncler, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Kev audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual Return
but does not include the Financial Statements and our Auditor's report thereon. Our opinion
on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 20L3 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
h'ue and fair view of the financial position and financial performance and cash flow of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and
maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true
ancl fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about rt hether the financial statements as a

r,r.hole are free from material misstatement, lvhether clue to fraud or error, and to issue an

auclitor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assul'ance is a high level of assurance,

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonablv be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraucl is higher than for one resulting from errol', as fraud mav involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a

a

a

a

a

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3Xi) of the Companies Act,2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclucle on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, rt hether a material uncertainty
exists lelated to events or conditions that mav cast material doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auclitor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure ancl content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit ancl material audit finclings, including any material
cleficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
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relationships and other matters that may reasonablv be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report )Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government Of India in terms of sub-section(11) of Section 1.43 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order , to the extent applicable.

L As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 20L4.

e) On the basis of the written representations receivecl from the directors as on 31st March,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
3Lst March,2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 1,64 (2) of the Act.

0 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
tl-re Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 201,4, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact on
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note.25 to the financial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
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indirectlv lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any maruler

whatsoever"by or on behalf of the Compar-ry ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide an1'

guarantee, securitv or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(B) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds (whlch are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received

by the Company from any person or entih,, including foreign entity ("Funding

Parties"), with the understanding, whet}rer recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whether, directly or inclirectly, lend or invest in other Persons or'

entities iclentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Partv

("Ultimate Beneficiari"r''1 o, provicle anv guarantee, security or the like on behalf of

the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(C) Basecl on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that

the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A)

and (B) above, contain any material misstatement.

d) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

e) Basecl on our examination which inclucled test checks, the company has used an

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feafur'e of

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year

for all relevant transactions recorded in the softr,t'ale. Further, during the course of our

auclit we clid not come across any instance of audit trail feafure being tampered with.

As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable flom

April 1, 2023, rcporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 20L4 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record

retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,,2024.

With respect to the other matters to be inclucled in the Auditor's Report in accordance

with the requirements of section 197(1,6) of the Act, as amended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given

to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

& Co LLP
Accountants

Re 3070698/8300266
.Lr'
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C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Place: Kolkata
Date:15-05-2024
UDIN :24057620BKAPH57196
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"ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'REPORT

The Arurexure A referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date to the financial statements of l\d/s BALLY

JUTE COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended March 31,,2024, we report that:

(i) (u) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-
in- progress, investment properties.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, report under
clause a(i)(a)@) of the order is not applicable.

(b) As explained to us, the Property, plant, and equipment have been physically verified
by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(.) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date are held in the
name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

(") In our opinion and according to the in{ormation and explanation given to us, the
company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act 1988 and Rules made there under.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate. The discrepancies of 10'/. or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed. However, the discrepancies
noticed on verification have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) During the year, the company has been sanctioned a working capital limit in excess

of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company
with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with books of accounts of
the company.

(iii) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not
made investment in,or provided any guarantee or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured/unseculed, to companies/firms/Limited Liability
Partnerships/ other parties.
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(a) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and as per information and,
explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has not provided loans or
advances in the nature of loans or stood guarantee or provided security to any other
entity.

(b) Accolding to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Companv has not made investment in
or provided gualantee or securitv provided or granted anv loans or advances in the
nature of loans during the year.

(c) Accorcling to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Companv, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans duling the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(cl) According to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or
aclvances in the nature of loans during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the in{ormation & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Compan\,, the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f)

(i")

Accorcling to the information & explanations given to us and the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Companv, the Company has not granted any loans or
aclvances in the nature of loans during ih" y"ur, hence reporting ,r-rd"r clause 31iii)(f) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the inforn-ration and explanations given to us, the
Company has not grar-rted any loan, made investments or provided any guarantees or
securitv to anv person specified under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company has not given any loans and guarantees or provided any security in
connection with a loan, and make investmcnts within the meaning of Sectiorr 186 of
Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting of other information under clause 3 (iv) of the
said Order is not requirecl.

(") According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the company has not accepted any deposits from
the public and there is no amounts which are cleemed to be deposits and consequently,
tlre directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and provisions of Section 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under
[the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits are not
applicable to the company.

("i) The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, in respect of the activities carried on by
the Company. We have broadly reviewecl the books of account maintained by the
company in respect of products where maintenance of cost records has been prescribecl
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and recorcls have been
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maintained. We have not however made a detailed examination of such records with a

view to determine whether they are accurate and complete.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of account, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State

Insurance, Income-Tax and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authority and
no undisputed amounts in respect of the above was in arrears as at March 3'1,2024 for a
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax,

Central Sales Tax, West Bengal Value Added Tax and Excise Duty on account of
dispute; except the following:-

(a) ln respect of CST for the Finnncial Yesr 2014-1.5 annunting to Rs.9.02laklrc.

(h) In rcspcct of WB VAT for tlrc Financial Yenr 2005-06 nnrcunting to Rs. 156.84 Laklrc

@ In respect of ESIC for tlrc Financial Yenr 2009-10 nnnutting to Rs. 38.46 Lakhs.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books of accounts and other records, the company does not have
any transactions unrecorded in the books of account and which were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1967. Hence
reporting of other information under clause 3 (viii) of the said Order is not required.

(i*) (a) Based on our Audit procedure and on the information and explanation given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of dues to any Financial lnstitution and Banks. Hence reporting of information under
clause 3 (ix) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the other records, the company has not been declared as a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender. Hence reporting of
information under clause 3 (lx) (b) of the said Order is not applicable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company
has taken term loan during the year and in oul opinion, term loans availed by the
company were applied by the company cluring the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the company
has not taken any fund from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, as defined in the Act. The
Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint

1
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venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 31st March 2024. Hence
reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (e) of the said Order is not applicable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on
the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint
venture (as defined in the Act) during the year ended 3Lst March 2024. Hence,
reporting of other information under clause 3 (ix) (f) of the said Order is not
applicable.

(") (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
giverr by the management, the company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (inclucling debt instruments) during the year.
Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (x) (a) of the said Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures (fully, partially or
optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, reporting of irrformation under
clause 3 (x) (b) of the said Order is not applicable.

(*i) (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has neither committed any fraud nor has any
fraud on the company been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no report
under section (72) of section 1"43 of the Companies Act 2013 has been filed by the
auclitors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed uncler rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) There has been no instance of whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year under audit.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting of information under clause 3
(xii) (a) to (c) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion the company has an internal Audit commensurate with the size and
nafure of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit report for the year under audit, issued to the
company till date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

5/ KOt
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(rr) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Accorclingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3

(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company is not required to be registered under section 45

IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, L934.

b) Basecl upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial
or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the
Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

c) Based upon the audit procedures performecl and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as

defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under
Paragraph 3 (xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Dilections, 20L6) does not have any core investment company.

(xvii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not incurred cash losses in the current
financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, there has not been any resignation of the
statutory auditors of the company during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realizations of financial assets and payment of the
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors ancl management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention which causes us to belief that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall clue within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company is not required to transfer any amount to any
fund specified in Schedule VII and sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Ac!
2013. Hence, Paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

il'
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(xxi) In our opinion, the company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial
Statements. Hence, Paragraph 3(xxi) of the Older is not applicable to the Company.

R.Kothari & Co LLP
d Accountants

Firm
oTSr'o'oueu/8300266

Kailash Chandra Soni
Partner

Membership No.: 057620
Place: Kolkata
Date:15-05-2024
UD IN : 24057 620BKAPHS7196
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors'Report

Report on the Internal Financial Conhols Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section L43 of the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of l\4/s BALLY JUTE
COMPANY LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31't March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company/s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
"Guiclance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Oul audit involves performing procedures to obtain auclit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

i
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtainecl is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
leporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenclitures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financiai controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements clue to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the clegree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls systems over financial reporting and such internal controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31't march 2024, based on the internal controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

Kothari & Co LLP
Ch&tered Accountants

Firm N&.: 30706gF]fil300266

sc

C.A. Chandra Soni
Partner

Place: Kolkata
Date:15-05-2024
UD IN : 24057 620BKAPH S71 96

$-q{q> L

il Membership No.: 057620

-
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BALLY .IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L51909W81982PLC0 35245

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH,2024
( Rs. in Lakhs unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars Note No As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

I.

(1)

(2)

(3)

II.
(1)

(2)

EOUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital

(b) Reserves & Surplus

Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long-TermBorrowings
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Borrowings
(b) Trade Payables

i) Total Outstanding dues of Micro and Small
Enterprises

ii) Total Outstanding dues of Trade Payables
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises

(c) Other Current Liabilities

(d) Short-TermProvisions
Total

ASSTtS
Non-Current Assets

,_. Property Plant & Equipment &
\o' Intangible Assets

(i) Property Plant & Equipment

(ii) Capital Work-in-Progress

(b) Non-Currentlnvestments'

(c) LongTermLoaru&Advance

Current Assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Trade l{eccivables

(c) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances
(e) Other Current Assets

Total

2

J

4

5

6

8

9

10

11

^12

13

14

15

16

7,290.77
-10,046.65 17,337.41

4,252.82

11,373.4"1

1.,290.77

9,486.65 70,777.42

3,759.41.

11.,491.17

3,864.79

388.03

3,422.78

336.63

9,01.1..84

-16.82

97"1.4"1

1.,-169.85

143.50

8,530.63

^10.12

7,465."14

L,355.41

129.87

1^j,125.68

1.00

602.90

26,903.64

10,767.36

9.74

1.00

27.1.4

26,028.00

17,729.s8

"15,774.07

10,805.24

1.5,222.76

'12,274.30

1,948.31

279.7't

198.10

473.64

11.,959.29

2,494.65

87.77

282.24

398.81

26,903.64 26,O28.00
Significant Accounting Policies and accompanying note
are part of these Financial Statements 1-43

As per our Report of this date annexed

For & Co LLP

FOR OF OF DIRECTOR

.y
CA Soni * * ir

t{.Y'*n*t
Manager

,b" y#L
(s.s. singh)

M No.
\ts^-a.^

Partner

Place :Kolkata

Dated. l5:'oS-2oL1

(Sanjay Agarwal) (Ajit
s,r-- 'z

Ku#ar Iain)

General Manager (F&A) , DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

Secretary & Chief JIN - 00526787 DIN - 06763614tlnanclal uttlcer

KIOLKATA
70007f

,a1



BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : L51909W81982PLC035245

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAB ENDED 31ST MARCH,2024

( Rs. in Lakhs unless mentioned otherwise)

Particulars Note No
For the year
ended 31st

March,2024

For the year
ended 31st March

2023

INCOME:
I

iI

III

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

TOTAL INCOME (I+II)

IV EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of Stock-in-trade
Change in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Other expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

Before exceptional and

items and tax ( III - IV)
VI

VII
Exceptional Items

Before extraordinary items and tax (V- Vf
Extraordinary Items

x
X

before Tax (VII - VID
Tax Expense:

(1) - Current Tax

(2) - Deferred Tax

(3) - I.Tax for Earlier Year's

XI

ruI
the period from continuing operations (IX - X)

from discontinuing operations
for the period (XI + XII)

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

77

18

t9

20

21.

22

9

23

34,009.54

6.46

41.,206.37

11.66

34,016.00 47,278.O4

20,502.00

(e38.71)

6,760.75

948.24

524.48

5,363.4-l

23,146.94
"1,681.23

931.85

7,364.43

938.80

495.95

5,954.67

33,260.t8 40,573.87

755.82 704.76

755.82 704.1,6

755.82

143.50

51.40

0.92

704.76

129.87

52.31.

0.28

195.83

559.99

782.46

52t.70

559.99 521.70

4.34

4.34

4.04

4.M

Significant Accounting Policies and accompanying note

are integral part of these Financial Statements 143
As per our Report of this date annexed

For & Co LLP

(k BEHALF OFDIRECTOR

CA Kailash Soni J.tO.--4^
M No. Y S$nh;';-r

Kumar Jain) (S.S. Singh)Partner
Place:Kolkata

Dated: l$- OS -2rlq

(Sanjay (Ajir

General Manager (F&A),
Secretary & Chief
Financial Officer

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DIN - 06763614

KOtxRra
700071*

4

*

d;,
DIN - 00s25787

)

t
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(Rs. in Lakhs unless mentioned otherwisr

{

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH2024

BALLY IUTE COMPANY LTD.
CIN : L51909W81982PLC035245

Particulars
For the year ended

37.03.2024

For the year ended
37.03.2023

530.64

4.78

948.24

755,82 704.1t

495.9.

9.9i

938.8r

556.03

(315.01)

, tto ot 2,148.8'

762.1'

(1,303.0(

343.-Ll

2,279.55
t7l

1.,951,;tt

2,136.05 1.,823.4-

4.78

$n.$)
10.54

M2.0-I

191,.94

87.77

279.77

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTryITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX & EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS.

Adjustments For:

Depreciation & Arnortisation Expenses

Interest Income
Interest & Finance Charges

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

Adjustments For:

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade & Other Receivables

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables

CASH GENERATED FORM OPERATIONS

Direct taxes paid
CASH FLOW BEFORE EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

EXTRA ORDINARY ITEMS

NET CASH FLOW OPERATING ACTryITIES AF'IER EXCETTIONAL ITEMS (A)

CASH FLOW FROM II.IVESTING ACTTffIES
Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment.
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Expenditure on capital work in progress
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

Interest received

Capital Advance during the year
NET CASH FLOWFROM INVESTING ACTTVITIES (B)

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTTVITIES

Repayment & Proceeds from borrowings
Payment of Interest & Finance Charges

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the commencement of the year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

700071

(e10.4:

(e.7,

(141.3

(274.{

301.{

87.',.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR

ri,
1

,.2

Significant Accounting Policies and accompanying note

are integral part of these Financial Statements 1-43

Figure in brackets represent outflows.
As Per Our Report of this Date Annexed.
For & Co LLP

CA
M No.
Partner

Place: Kolkata

[.r',"nu,
Manager

(Ajit Kumar Jain)
DIRECTOR

DrN - 00525787

(s.s. singh)
DIRECTOR

DrN - 05763514

\,* \e**tr. S$_g*i#f
(S.K.Agarwal)

G. M. (F&A) , Secretary & CFO

Soni

*



Bally )ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March,2024.

Corporate Information
Bally Jute Company Limited (The Company) was incorporated in India with limited liability
by shares on September 4,1982.

NOTE NO.1: Material Accounting Policies

I.Basis of Accounting:

a) The financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on the
accrual basis and on the principles of going concern. The accounting policies are

consistently applied by the Company;

b) The Company has prepared these financial statements to comply in all material respects

with the Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules 2006, the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the Companies Act, 1956 (to

the extent applicable);

c) All the Assets and Liabilities have been classified as Current or Non-Current as per
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the
Company's Act,2013. Based on the nature of the products and the time between the

acquisition of the assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,

the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current,
non-current classification of Assets and Liabilities;

II.Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes

aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are

reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and if material,
their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

dd



Bally |ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31.t March,2024.

Ill.Properg, Plant & Equipment:
Property, Plant & Equipment represent a significant proportion of the assets of the

Company. Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at their original cost less accumulated

depreciation / amortisation. The Cost includes the purchase cost including import duties

and non-refundable taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing an Property, Plant
& Equipment to the Location and Conditions of its intended use. Capital work in progress is

stated at cost. Cost comprises of expenditure incurred in respect of the asset under
development and includes any attributable/allocable cost and other incidental expenses.

IV.Depreciation:
Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment is determined using the Straight Line Method

on pro-rata basis based on the useful life of the Property, Plant & Equipment as prescribed

under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except for the plant & machinery. The

management estimates the useful life for Plant & Machinery to 25 years based upon the

evaluation carried by the technical valuer.

V.Inventories :

Inventory of the Company have been valued as follows:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Raw Material

Work In Progress

Stores & Spares

Finished Goods

At cost.

At estimated cost.

At weighted average cost.

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Vl.Foreign Currency Transactions

a) Initial Recognition:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying
exchange rate to the foreign currency amount at the date of the transaction;

b) Foreign Exchange Differences:

Exchange Differences arising on the date of settlement of monetary items are recognised

as income or expense on the date of settlement. However, the resulted gain or loss

relating to long term monetary item for financing acquisition of depreciable capital
assets, is adjusted to the acquisition cost of such assets and depreciated over its
remaining useful life.

a



Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March,2024.

c) Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the closing of the year, are converted

into India currency at the appropriate rates of exchanges prevailing on the date of the

Balance Sheet.

Vll.Revenue Recognition:

i) Sale of Product

a) All Export Sales in foreign currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on

the dates when the relevant transactions take place;

ii) Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive dividend is

established which generally coincide as and when received.
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
Outstanding and the rate applicable.

iii) Insurance Claim

The Company recognise insurance claims when the recoverability to the claim is
established with a reasonable certainty which generally coincide as and when received.

iv) Export Incentive

The Company has recognised Income from Draw Back Duty on Export on Accrual Basis.

Vlll.Government Grants
Govemment Grants given for acquisition of specific fixed assets are deducted from the

gross value of the relevant fixed assets on completion of the works in arriving at the book
value.
Grants received from Government or other authorities towards revenue are recognized

over the period in which the related costs are incurred and are deducted from the related

exPenses.

IX.Investment

Investment is treated as Non Current assets & stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the

value of long term investment is made only if such a decline is other than temporary nature

in the opinion of the management.

*t(oLK'
7
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Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t Marctr, 2024.

X.Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets

are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying assets is one that necessarily

takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are

charged to revenue.

Xl.Retirement Benefits

a) Contributions to Provident Fund are accounted for on accrual basis.

b) Liability in respect of Gratuity is being provided on cash basis.

c) Liability in respect to leave encashment is being accounted for on accrual basis as

calculated by the Management.

Xll.Contingent Liability

Contingent Liabilities are not provided for but disclosed by way of notes to the account.

XIII.Taxes On Income

Current tax is determined on the basis of the amount of tax payable on taxable income for
the year. Deferred tax is calculated at current statutory income tax rate and is recognized on

timing differences between taxable income & accounting income that originate in one period

and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets, subject

to consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried forward only to the extent that

there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against

which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

XlV.Provisions & Contingencies:

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when

there is a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an

outflow of resources.

&
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Bally )ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March,2024.

Xv.Earmnee lel€hale:

a) Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net Profit or Loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the year.

b) for the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net Profit or Loss for the

year attributable to the equity shareholders and weighted average number of share

outstanding if any are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

G
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BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2024 (Rs.in Lakhs)

1,300.00 1,300.00

1,300.00 1"300,00

7,290.77 7,290.77

1,290,77 7290,n

7,290.77 7,290.77

7,290.77 1,290.77

2. SHARECAPITAL

Authorised Shares:

13,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each

(Previous Year 13,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

Issued & Subscribed

12,907,659 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

(Previous Year 12,907,659 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

Paid up

12,907,659 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

(Previous Year 12,907,659 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each)

The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31st March 2024

No. of Shares Value

As at 31st March, 2023

No. of Shares Value

Issued, Subscribed and fuly paid up Equity

shares outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add : Shares issued during the year

72,907,659 7,290.77 12,907,659 7,290.77

12,907,659 -t,290.77

Issued, Subscribed and fuly paid up Equity

shares outstanding at the end of the year 12,907,659 1.,290.77

B) Termg/Rights attached to Shares

(i) The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share.Each Equity shareholder is eligible
for one vote per share held and having same rights as to dividend.In the event of liquidation of the Company,the equity 

I

shareholders wi.ll be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

The distribution will be in proportion to the member of equity shares held by the Shareholders.

C) The name of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company and their numbers are as follows:

As on 31p3l2024 As on
NAME OF SHAREHOLDERS

No. of Shares o/o No. of Shares

Ambica Capital Markets Limited

Aspective Tie Up Limited

Goldview Financial Services Limited.

Kshitiz Merchandise Pvt. Ltd.

Satbichar Vyapaar Limited.

4,793,073

7,746,000

7,097,533

7,686,000
"t,684,500

37.73

13.53

8.50

13.06

13.05

4,793,073
't,746,000

7,097,533

1,686,000

1.,684,500

37.13

13.53

8.50

13.06

13.05

& ?Ouu

A
1

i
aD
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Particulars
As at 31st March

2024
As at 31st March

2023

o/o



BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2024 (Rs.in Lakhs)

Promoter Shareholdins As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

sl.
No.

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares Vo of Shares No. of Shares Vo of Shares
Vo change

during the
yeil

1 Ambica Capital Markets l-td 4,793,073 37.13 4,793,073 37.13

2 Aspective Tie up ltd. 1,,746,000 13.53 1,746,O0O 13.53

3 Ambica Jute Ltd. 47,542 o.37 47,542 o.37

4 Auckland Services & Securities Limited 266,s00 2.06 266,500 2.O6

5 Abhishek Kumar Kankaria 572,900 3.97 572,900 ?.97

6 Ashish kumar Kankaria L28,109 0.99 128,L09 0.99

7 Gold View Financial Services Ltd. 1-,097,533 8.50 1,097,533 8.50

8 Kanak Textile LTD. 2,s00 o.02 2,500 0.02

9 Kshitiz Merchandise Ltd. 1,686,000 13.06 1,686,000 13.06

10 Om towqers pvt. Ltd 2,500 o.02 2,500 0.02

11 Satvichar Vyapaar Ltd. 1,684,500 13.05 1.684.500 13.05

12 Score Information'fechnologies Ltd. 135,4-t6 1.05 L35,416 1.05

13 Wellworth Vani jya l']vt. I-td 2,500 0.02 2,500 0.02

1,4 Yoqesh Kumar Kankaria 573,483 4.M 573,483 4.44

15 Manbir Fincom Pvt, Ltd. 204,000 1.58 204,000 1.58

72.a82556 99.81 72,882.556 99.81

3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS (Rs.in Lakhs)

D) The details of the shareholdings of the promoter are as follows:-

Particulars
As at 31st March

2023

Additiony' Created
during the year

Deductions
during the

year

As at 31st March
2024

170.76

(770.76)

557.58

(ss7.58)

5,967.97

(5,967.9n

2,795.34

(1,891.69)

559.99

(409.s6)

170.76

(770.76)

557.58

(ss7.s8)

5,957.97

(s,961.9n

3"356.33

(2"301.2s)

Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of

Capital Reserues

Securities Premium

General Reseryes

Profit & Loss.

Total 9,487 559.99 10,045.55

Previous Year :2022-23 (8,964.9s) (52r.70\ (9,485.65)

Fizures in brackets reflects the figures of Last Financial Year

(Rs.in Lakhs)

As at 31st
March,2024

Particulars

2088.13

118.28

36.73

5s8.92

6$.2n

7,U6.05

746.98

23.00

'1,245.87

(s5s.12)

2,1.48.79 2,706.78

999.00

777.00

449.00

267.00

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

4, LONG.TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Loan

a) Canara Bank Tem Loan

(Refer Note 4A)

b) Vehicle Loan

(Refer Note 4A )

b) Forklifter Loan

(Refer Note 4A )

Loan from LIC (Secured against the Key Man Policy of Key Managerial Personnel)

Less: Current matuirities of long term borrowings

Unsecured Loan

Loan from Related Parties

Loan from Other Parties

3,854.79 3,422.78

l.#Ft({) 'iT7
*
At

e
*

As at 31st
March,2023
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BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2024 (Rs.in Lakhs)

CURRENT LIABILMES

S.SHORTTERM BORROWNGS

Secured Loans

Working Capital facility from Scheduled Bank (Canara Bank) 7,043.57 6,230.5L

(i) Primary: Secured by hypothecation of Curent assets viz. Raw Materials,
Work-in-Progress, Stores & Sparcs, Scmi Finished goods, Finished goods and Book debts.

(ii) Collateral: Secured by:
(a) Existing Plant and Machinery

(b) EMT of land and building in the name of M/s Bally Jute Company Limited. (Deed no. 6525

Measuring 17.005 Acres)

(iii) Personal Guarantee of Sri A.K.Kankaria

(iv) Corporate Guarantee of Ambica Jute Mills Ltd.

Current Maturitics of Long-term Debt - Canara Bank (Refer Note No.4A) 6$.n 555.12

Unsecured Loan

Loan from Rclated Partics

Loan from Other Parties

268.00

1,,U7.00

1,343.00

402.00

6. TRADE PAYABLE

Dues to Micro & Small Enterprise (Refcr Note No.29) 76.82

977.47

L0.L2

Othcrs
9aa-22

Trade Payables (Ageing) As at 31.03.2024

Particulars
Less than 1

year 1 -2 Year 2-3 years
More than 3
years Total

(i) MSME 16.82 76.82

(ii) Others 948.96 22.45 971.47

(iii) Disouted ducs - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Trade Payables (Ageing) As at 31.03.2023

Particulars

Less than 1
year 1 -2 Year 2-3 years

More than 3

years Total
(i) MSME 10.12 10.72

(ii) Others '1,450.05 6.45 7.59 1.05 tA65.r4
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others

Particulars
As at 31st

I&lfarch,2024

7. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

lnterest Payable

Intercst Accrucd but not due on Borrowings

Statutory Dues

Liabilities for Expenses

Advance from Customer

8. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for lncomc Tax

181,.70

10.05

67.65

903.94

6.50

lU.75
37.77

1,40.77

7.91

60.88

1.169.85 1,355.41

143.50 129.87

143.50 129.87

{
"n
i/.1

1ti

tlf.

I0o
Ke,l

Particulars
AE at 31st
M.tch,2024

As at 31st
Mach,2023

As at 31st
March,202j
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BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2024 (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31st
March 2024

As at 31st
March 2023

10. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Non Trade Investment Unquoted

Number
Face value

per unit
Name of the Company

Rs 10

AKK Mercantile Pvt. Ltd.
(Fully paid Equity Shares)

10,000

1.00 1.00

1.00 1.00

602.90 27.14

502.90 27.74

3,696.70

1,912.46

6,426.44

238.70

4,325.76

1,885.83

5,514.37

233.33

72,274.30 11,959.29

1.,948.31 2,494.65

7,948,31 2494.65

in brackets reflects the figures of Last Financial Year

. LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Capital Advance (Refer note No. 40 )

CURRENT ASSETS

I2.INMNTORIES (As taken,valued and certified by the Management)

Raw Materials (At Cost )

Work-in-progress (At Estimated Cost)

Finished Goods (At Cost or Net realizable value whichever is lower)

Stores & Spares (At Weighted Average Cost)

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured (Considered Good)

Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables (Ageing) As at 31.03.2024

Particulars

Less than 6

months 5months-lYea 2-3 years

More than 3

years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivable

- Considered Good 1,746.95 0.79 200.57 7,948.31

- Considered Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivable
- Considered Good
- Considered Doubtful

Trade Receivables (Ageing) As at 31.03.2023

Particulars

Less than 5

months 6months-1Yea 7 -2\ear 2-3 years
More than 3

years Total
Undisputed Trade Receivable

Considercd Cood 2,134.87 92.U 266.94 2494.65

- Considered Doubtful
Disputed Trade Receivable
- Considered Good

Considered Doubtful

,ffi}

1 -2 Year



BALLY JUTE COMPANY TIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement as at 31st March,2024 (Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at 31st
March 2024

As at 31st
March 2023

74. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

In Current Accounts with Schedule Bank

Cash in hand

OTHER BANK BALANCES

Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity less than 12 months)

(Margin against BGlLC)

15. SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured, Considered good)

Advances Recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Advances to Employees

Advances to Suppliers

Advances to Others

Deposits

16. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Deposits/Balances with statutory authorities

Advance Income Tax ( Including Tax deducted at source)

Balance with Government authorities

Other Current Aseets

0.87

74.43

264.41

0.92

13.16

73.69

279.77 87.77

85.41

16.28

1.4.57

81.84

80.14

30.48

25.64

145.98

198.10 282.24

17.23

151.02

235.56

69.84

17.23

127.76

187.88

65.95

473.64 398.81

'e
*

A rc.fi

Y



BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
(Rs.in Lakhs)to the Financial Statement for the ended 31st March,2024

For the year
ended 31st March

2024

33,818.70

183.55

3.99

3.29

40,759.50

406.30

35.07

5.50

34,009.54 41,205.37

4.78

1.68

9.98

1..68

6.46 77.56

4,325.76

20,055.20

3,696.70

2,123.03

25,399.41.

4,325.76

20,684.26

82.26

23,195.68

49.74

20,602.00 23,146,94

1.,912.46

6,426.44

1,885.83

5,514.37

8,338.90 7400.20

1,885.83

5,51.4.37

1.,571.23

6,760.82

7,400.20 8^332.05

(e38.71) 931.85

6,057.86

461,.74

241.15

6,632.44

476.66

255.33

17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sales of Jute Goods

i.) Domestic

ii.) Export

Sale of Import Licence

Duty Drawback on Export

Revenue from operations (Net)

18. OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

Rent Income

19. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Add:-
Less :

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing Stock (Refer Note No.11)

Less : Insurance Claim

20. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF

FINISHED GOODS WORK-IN-PROGRESS

AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Closing Stock in Progress

Closing Stock - Finished Goods

Opening Stock in Progress

Opening Stock - Finished Goods

(Increase)/ Decrease in Stocks

21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries,Wages, Allowances & Bonus

Contribution to Provident & Other fund

Staff Welfare Expenses

6,760.75 7,364.43

e',*

Particulars
For the year

ended 31st March
2023



BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March,2024 (Rs.in Lakhs)

22. FINANCE COST

Interest Expenses

Net gain on Foreign Currenry Transaction

23. OTHER EXPENSES

Stores & Spares consumed

Power & Fuel

Freight on Govt. Supplies

Repairs to Building
Repairs to Machinery

Bank Charges

Rates & Taxes

Brokerage & Commission

CSR Expenses

Payment to Auditors
As Auditor
Statutory Audit
Tax Audit
Miscellaneous Expenses

949.12

(0.88)

1.,004.62

(65.83)

948.24 938.80

1.,658.63

1,308.82

1.,1.44.85

736.78

28.65

70.18

15.70

67.35

11.50

3.75

1.00

916.20

1.,877.87

1.,302.19

765.71.

80.05

74.1L

44.60

77.62

158.43

10.35

3.75

1.00

1,685.01

5,363.4\ 5,954.67

t

e
r*

Particulars
For the year

ended 31st March
2024

For the year
ended 31st March

2023
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Audit Fees 3.7s 3.75

Tax Audit Fees 1.00 1.00

Total 4.75 4.75

Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3L* March,2024.

Additional Notes in relation to Financial Statements

25. Contingent Liability not provided in respect of

Bank Guarantee given by the Company's Bankers amounting to Rs.347.91 Lakhs-
(Previous year Rs.363.91 Lakhs).

ii. Claim not acknowledged by the Company for VAT and Sales tax demand for various
financial year under appeal Rs. 165.86 Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 165.86 Lakhs).

iii. The Company paid till date Rs 9.41, Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 9.41 Lakhs) for liability of Rs.9.41
Lakhs (P.Y Rs. 9.4L Lakhs) against Payment of Gratuity Act'1.972, matter is pending
under appeal with the appellate Authority.

iv. The Company paid till date an Advance of Rs 7.82 Lakhs (P.Y Rs 7.82 Lakhs) against
the demand raised by E.S.LC of Rs.38.46 Lakhs (Rs.38.46 Lakhs) for which the
Company made an appeal.

Liability of Gratuity has been determined on the basis of Actuarial valuation as per
revised AS-15 as on 31.03.2024Rs.1.,592.96 Lakhs (P.Y. Rs. L,602.59 Lakhs). The same
will be accounted for as and when paid.

Auditors Remuneration consists of:
(Excluding G.S.T.)

28. In the opinion of the Management, all the assets other than Fixed Assets and Non-
Current Investments have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business, at least
equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. Provision for
depreciation and all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of what is required.

29. The Company is yet to receive balance confirmations in respect of certain trade payables,
other payables, trade receivables, other receivables and advances. The Management does
not expect any material difference affecting the current year's financial statements due to
the same.

30. A Sum of Rs. 16.82 Lakhs (P.Y 10.11 Lakhs) is payable to Micro & Small Enterprises which
are outstanding as on 31st March, 2024.This information as required to be disclosed under
the Micro and Small Enterprises Development Act' 2006 has been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

1.

26.

27.

t
cDE



Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March,2024.

31. The Company has decided voluntary delisting of equity shares of the company from
Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd., as per the resolution passed in the Board Meeting held on
13th March, 2020. Accordingly, the company has already applied for its delisting under the
SEBI (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations 2009 on 6th August, 2020. Necessary approval
is pending to be received from SEBI. Since the company is under process of delisting hence
financial statement has not been prepared as per the requirement of Ind-AS. The impact of
the same on the reported financials remains unascertained.

32. SEGMENT REPORTING

The entire operation of the Company relates to only one segment i.e. Jute Goods. As
such there is no separate reportable segment as defined under Accounting Standard-17
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on Segment Reporting.

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE:
Name of the Related Parties and relationship with them (preoious year figures giaen in
bracket):

Company having
significant
influence

Loan Taken
Rs. 525.00 Lakhs

(P.Y.1183.00
Lakhs)

Rs.1267.00 Lakhs
(P.Y Rs. 1792.00

Lakhs)

Enterprise where
the company has

significant
influence

Bally Jute Mills
Employee's Provident

Fund Trust
P.F.Loan

Rs.1..27 Lakhs
(Rs.1.63 Lakhs)

Rs.34.47 Lakhs
(Rs.35.74 Lakhs)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr. Satyananda Sahoo
( Chief Financial Officer)
Deceased on :-24th March

2024.

Remuneration
Rs.13.51 Lakhs

(Rs.13.28 Lakhs)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr.Shashi Prakash
Purohit

(Manager)
Remuneration

Rs.18.61 Lakhs
(Rs.17.29 Lakhs)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr.M.R.Yagnik
(Executive Director)

Remuneration
Rs. 29.35 Lakhs

(P.Y.29.00 Lakhs)

Key Managerial
Personnel

Mr. S.K. Agarwal
(General Manager F&A

and Secretary)
Remuneration

Rs.23.83 Lakhs
(Rs.22.44 Lakhs)

* *

Relationship Name of the Related
Party TrahsaCtions

Balance

lrr t;tfiaing as on
,:" ,,::, 3Wf2024
;1 . ..'.,r(f{s'i1 lakhs)

Ambica Capital Markets
Limited



Bally |ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March,2024.

34. EARNING PER SHARE

Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the Profit after Tax, attributable to the Equity
Share holders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding during the

as below.

35. DEFERRED TAXATION

In view of Accounting Standards 22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Deferred tax Liability for the year amounting
to Rs. 51.40 Lakhs (P.Y 52.31 Lakhs) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss .

The deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities comprise of tax effect of following timing
differences

10Nominal Value per share (in Rs.) 10

Profit after Taxation (Rs. In Lakhs) 559.99 521..70

Weighted average no. of shares

1,29,07,659- For Basic E.P.S 1.,29,07,659

- For Diluted E.P.S 1,29,07,659 1.,29,07,659

Basic Earning per share (in Rs.) 4.34 4.04

Diluted Earning per Share (in Rs.) 4.34 4.04

Depreciation as per Income Tax Act 728.71. 703.80

Depreciation as per Companies Act 524.47 495.95

Differential depreciation 204.24 207.85

Deferred Tax Liability @25.1"68% 51.40 52.31.

Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Liability 336.63 284.32

Add: Deferred Tax Liability 51.40 52.31.

Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Liability 388.03 336.63

Particulars 31,$.2A24 37.03.2023

Particulars
2023-24

.(Rs in lakhs) ,,

20a.23

(Rs inlakhs)



Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3L.t March,2024.

36. QUANTATIVE DETAIL (Rs. In Lakhs)

l.

Value of Imported and Indigenous

Raw Material & Stores (including
Components & Spare Parts)

consumed

Raw Material:

259.32 1.25% 2720.51. 11.75%Imported

20342.68 98.75% 20426.43 88.25%Indigenous

20602.00 1000/o 23146.94 1000/o

TOTAL

Stores:

Imported

100% 1871..87 100%Indigenous 1658.63

1658.63 100o/o 7877.87 100%TOTAL

Ii Earning in Foreign Currency

183.55 406.30
Export of goods calculated on

F.O.B. Basis

Iii Expendifure in Foreign Currency

259.32 2720.51Import of Raw Jute

86.12 72.80Travelling Expenses

* *.

--

VaIue

2023-24



Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March,2024.

37 .Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

The Company has taken steps for hunger eradication in the local area, towards CSR
expenses. The details are as under:

In Lakhs

38. Goods & Service tax balances, as appearing in financial statements are subject to
Reconciliation and annual retum.

39. During the year a sum of Rs. 981.50 Lakhs received on account of insurance proceeds
has been adjusted with expenses of insurance charges under the head of miscellaneous
exPenses

40. Estimated amount of contracts remanning to be executed on Capital Advance and not
provided for is Rs. Nil (P.Y. Rs.Nil) including GST.

41. Additional Regulatory Information's :-

(a) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any Benami Property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder, the company for the
financial year 2023-24 or any of the previous years.

(b) The Company has any not entered into any transactions with companies
which are struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section
560 of Companies Act,1,956 during the financial year ended on 3Lst March
2024.

sl
No.

Particulars Year ended 31't
March2024

Year ended 31't
March 2023

't Amount required to be spent by the company during
the year

17.33/- r0.2e/-

2 Amount of
Eradication.

expendifure incurred on Hunger LL.50/- 70.35/-

J Shortfall at the end of the year

4 Total of previous years shortfall
5 Reason for shortfall NA NA
6 Nature of CSR activities Hunger Eradication
7 Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR

expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard :

Nil Nil



,. -r

Bally ]ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l,tMarch,2O24.

(.) As on the year ended 31st March 2024, there are no pending Charges to be
registered with ROC beyond the statutory period and there are no pending
Satisfaction of Charges to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period.

(") During the year Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

1. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries).

(f) The Company has no such transaction which are not recorded in the books of
accounts during the year and also there are no such unrecorded income and
related assets related to earlier years which have been recorded in the books
of account during the year.

(g) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual
Currency during the financial year 2023-24 or any of the previous years.

*€
*'l

(d) During the year Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds
(either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

1. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

2. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).



Bally |ute Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31"t March,2024.

42. Figures are rounded off to the Rupees in Lakhs and decimals thereof, unless otherwise
stated.

43. Previous year figures have been rearranged and regrouped wherever consider
necessary to conform to this year's classification

For R.Kothari & Co LLP

F.R.N. FOR & ON BEHALF OF BOARD

CA Kailash
M No.057520
Partner

Place : Kolkata
Dated: jS.CS.

Manager

Soni
Sanjay Agarwal
General Manager (F&A),
Secretary & Chief
Finanacial officer

Fr-u rc"--..- 2;a.^.

Ajit Kumar ]ain
Director

,ttr,., s",/,, s"v i
L/

S.S.Singh
Director

DrN-00526787 DrN - 06763614

KOLKATA
700071

q/
L '/4/

t{.P'.*onitl



BALLY IUTE COMPANY LIMITED

Regd Offc: 5, SREE CHARAN SARANI, BALLY, HOV/RAH-7LL}0L

CIN: L5 1909, WntgaZPLC035245

E Mail Id: sanjay. agarwalpkankariagroup.com

BOAED'S REPORT

To,

The Members,

1. rrNANelAI- S_UMMA&Y gR HrGflLrGHTS

During the year under review, a brief break up of the financial performance of the
Company is given as under:

in Lacs)

2. DIYiDfiND

In order to conserye the resources of the company, the Board of Directors of the
Company have not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31st March,2024.

Particulars For the year ended
3ls March 2024

For the year ended

31" March 2023

Revenue from Operations 34009.54 41206.37

Profit before finance
Depreciation/Amortization

charges, Tax, 2228.54 2138.91

Less: finance Charges 948.24 938.80

!ryfi t before Tax, Depreciation/Amortization 1280.30 1200.1 I

Less: Depreciation 524,49 49s.95

Net Profit before Taxation 755.82 704.16

Tax expenses 195.83 782.46

Profit/(Ioss) after tax 559.99 521.70

3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS. IF ANY

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 42"d Annual Report on the business

and operations of the company together with the Audited financial statement on
standalone basis for the financial year ended 31st March 2024.



-

There was no Change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year

4. 9?_yiNN] "19-Nfi M"D" $',; N} fr 9"Y C{M,p ANY:$ #fti&ffi
During the year 2023-24 under review, the company has achieved lower sales of Rs.

340.09 crores vis-a-vis sales of Rs. 412.06 crores during the corresponding previous

year 2022-23 but earned higher profit'before tax of Rs. 755.82Iakhs vis-h-vis profit
before tax of Rs. 704.16 lakhs in the corresponding previous year 2022-23

respectively. The company achieved production of 33440 MT and sales of 32392 MT
during the year under review which was lower over the corresponding previous year.

The domestic market during the year was weak and the flow of government orders

fell short of expectations thereby affecting the overall volumes. Moreover, the fall in
raw material prices impacted the sales value of finished products during the year.

Further the export market was affected due to ongoing Russia-Ukraine war with
resultant impact on European markets despite ecological concerns.

5. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A. tNousrRv srRucruRr aNo ouvrtopurNr

The Government of India under Jute Packaging Materials (Compulsory use in packing
commodities) Act 1987 continued with reservation norms order for compulsory
packaging of food grain and sugar. The jute Industry saw decent availability of raw
jute coupled with lower raw jute prices due to good harvest. The general demand

from the end users of jute products was weak owing to restricted applications with
the continuance of Russia-Ukraine war. However, the demand from government
sector for meeting packaging needs during the year was normal in view of mandatory
packaging order. The alternative usage of jute products is likely to pick up considering
the eco-friendly nature of jute products and growing environmental concerns world
over.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREADS

OPPORTT]NITIES

a The Government of India has extended fuIl support with the continuance

of 100o/o reservation norms for using jute bags in meeting packaging

requirements for food grains.

Growth is expected in the jute industry with better demands amidst

ecological concerns.

a



THREATS

i) The Compulsory packaging order issued by government of India under IPM Act
1987 for compulsory packaging of 100o/o of food grains in jute packaging material

is a function of government policy and procedures. However, the support under

JPM Act to the jute industry has been continuing from years and is likely to
continue in the interest of workers and farmers.

ii) In view of prolonged Russia -Ukraine war the export markets for finished
products have been impacted. However, the situation in export market is likely
to improve after the ongoing conflict is over and resultant European market

demand picks up.

iii) The fluctuation in crop size is a function of weather conditions coupled with
area under cultivation and the same governs the raw material prices. However,

the availability of raw jute has been abundant during the year under review.

C. SEGMENTWISE OR PRODUCT\I/ISE PERFORMANCE

The Company is engaged in single business segment i.e. manufacture and sale of
jute goods. Hence, disclosure requireme.nt in respect of business segment is not
applicable under accounting dtandard AS- 17 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

D. OUTLOOK:

The prolonged Russia-tlkraine war has impacted the export markets
considerably and it is e>gected that the demand will pick up posr rhe ongoing
conflict. It is expected that normal monsoon conditions will help better quality
of raw jute availability along with stable prices. Further, the reports of normal
sowing of new crop for the jute year 2024-25 coupled with favorable weather
conditions seems conducive for normal crop size. The outlook of industry is

bright owing to jute being a natural fibre with bio-degradable characterisrics.
The Government policy has been favourable and government orders continue
to remain key in the domestic market.. The demand for products made out of
natural fibre jute is expected tb increase in view of increasing emphasis on
usage of environment friendly products around the world.

E. INTERNAL CONTROT SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQ-UACY:

The internal controls of the company has been strengthened with higher
frequency of internal checks and balances so as to provide desired timely alert



signals. The said upgraded internal controls coupled with the existing installed

ERP system will help in meeting the desired results. Moreover, the internal
audit mechanism is in place to conduct the routine checks on a regular basis

throughout the year for better control and efficient management.

F. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERTIONAL
PERFORMANCE:

The following are the significant areas'of financial performance:

( Rs. In lacs )

The industrial Relations of the production unit of the Company during the financial
year 2023-2024 were peaceful and harmonious. Supervisory Development programs
on productiviry, safety, cost control, communications and human relations are being
carried out as a matter of routine. With high level of Commitment and loyalty by staff
members, the Company is confident to face the challenges of competitive market
conditions.

H. CAUTIONARYSTATEMENT

Statement in this Management Discussior, ,rrd Arralysis Report, describing Company's
objective, projection, expectation, estimate or prediction is based on the prevailing
Industry position and market conditions which may be different from what is
envisaged with regards to future prospects and performance. However, this may
undergo changes in future in view of the volatility involved based on weather

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023

Revenue from Operations (Net)

Cost of Material Consumed

Finance Cost

Profit After Tax

Inventory

34009.54

20602.00

948.24

s59.99

12274.30

41206.37

23746.94

938.80

521.70

11959.29

G. HUMAN RESOURCES



condition, Government Policy relating to Jute Industry, global demand and market

trends.

6, CAB"PAEAIE.SOYEENANEE

In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate report on

corporate governance together with a certificate from
M/s PRAMOD AGARWAL &. CO., a firp of practising company secretaries,

confirming compliance thereof is given in ANNEXURE-I forming part of this report.

7. ANNUAL RETT.IRN

The Annual Return of the Company is available on the Company's website:
http ://www.ballviute. com/.#

8. NUMBTR OT BOARD MEHTINGS

The Board of Directors met 16 (Sixteen) times during this financial year ended on 31"
March, 2024. For details of the meeting of the Board, please refer to the corporate
governance repoft, which forms the part of this report.

9. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTHMS AND THHIR ADEQ.UACY

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in
management discussion & Analysis which form part of this report.

10. PAR'fiCULARS OT LQAN. GUARANTSES AND INVESTMINIS UNDER
SECTION 186

The particulars of loan, investments and guarantees have been disclosed in the
financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2024.

11. PAR

PABTIEI ;

As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, related paffy rransactions are
placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Wherever required, prior approval
of the Audit Committee is obtained on an oninibus basis for continuous transactions
and the corresponding actual transactions become a subject of review at subsequent
Audit Committee Meetings.



All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year

were on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 there were no materially significant related Party
transaction which may have conflict with interest of the company or which are

required to be reported in form AOC 2.

The disclosures as required AS - 18 have been made in Notes to Accounts of the

Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March,2024.

12.;?ME_LL-A-H"i&W{r:ffi ,1ww1:bwh1,s1'bwfr &y,w*

The Company has complied with Secretu.iai Strrdards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

x.3 " ffi)_g"x::#xff:- &y,t:{}w}:

The Notes on accounts referred to the auditors' report are self-explanatory and do not

call for any further explanation.

14. MATER.TAL CHANGES-_-r$,FTECTING THr -TINANCIAL pOS:.TION OF THE

COMPANY

There is no material change in the financial position of the Company subsequent to
balance sheet date which will affect the Company.

15. ENYIORNMENT--ENE&GY CONSERVATIQN" TECHNOLOGY AB$OB?TIQN
AND TOREIGN IXCHANGE EAR\TINq AND OUTGO,

As required by the Companies Act 2013, the relevant data pertaining to the

conservation of energy etc. are given in ANNEXURE -2 of this report.

1 {'.'ry-y, WY h{,}aW ilfn",{ }\tt1,l,il,v

In compliance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has

put in place Risk Minimization and Assessment Procedures. In order to effectively
and efficiently manage risk and address challenges, the company has formulated Risk
Management Policy.

The combination of policies and procedures adequately addresses the various risks
associated with your Company's businesses.

', 
7 " 1;),Y.1.4,7:,{;;XWkfi



During the year under review, Mr. Pradip Debnath, whose tenure as an Independent

Director would be completed from 01" November,2023 and in place of him Mr. Ajit
Kumar Jain has been appointed as an Independent Director with effect from 05'h

September,2023.

Thereafter, during the year Mr. Satyananda Sahoo vacate his position as a CFO due to

his sudden demise as on 24th March, 2024 and his place of him Mr. Sanjay Kumar

Agarwal has been appointed as a Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the company with
effect from 08th April, 2024.

Mr. Shyam Sundar Singh, (holding DIN-06763614) shatl retire by rotation at the

ensuing annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers herseif for re-appointment.

The information about the director seeking re-appointment as required by Regulation

36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings have

been given in the notice convening the ensuing annual general meeting

1 tr'. tr3W;C1;,, hlT &' tr' t tll?; ffiV li,N"f} T:,? Ti,Tq rl TtN' 1: 1 )X i4 ?i,C' {', * 4A

AII the independent directors have declared that they meet the criteria of
independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Regulation 16(lxb) and Regulation 25 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors,. there has been no change in the

circumstances which may affect their status as independent directors of the Company

and the Board of Directors are satisfied of the integrity, expertise, and experience of all
the independent directors on the Board of Directors. A11 the independent directors
have registered themselves on INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DATABANK.

3 e . *yy*ru&H &ffiiw.,N, yx,&fi{}:,4}9r;2,

During the year under review, there is no changes in Key Managerial personnel (KMP)
as per provision of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.

2t3. W 3 ]-ffiLl{; i3b.? *',:WT::fi

The Company has not accepted deposits from public within the meaning of Section 73
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under. Further, no amount
on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the
date ofthe balance sheet.



I

2 1 . flECBETARIA L A.IJPIT

The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Rakesh Agarwal & Co., a firm of practising

company secretaries (COP 9014) to carry out the Secretarial Audit under the

provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The report from the secretarial

auditor in Form MR-3 for the financial year 2023-24 does not contain any

qualification, reservation or adverse remarks. The secretarial audit report is enclosed as

ANNEXURE-III to this report.

22. AI{NUAL SSCRETARIAI- COMPLIANCE

In compliance ro SEBI circular no. CmyCpoUiMDl/27/2019 dated 08,h February,2ol9
Annual Secretarial Compliance was conducted by M/s S. Dalmiya & Associates.,

practicing company secretary. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report in
prescribed format under Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given as ANNEXURE- ry which forms the part of
this report. The observations made in the report are self explanatory.

Further, the Company has uploaded the Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the

year ended 31st March,2024 issued by the Company Secretary in practice with CSE

Limited on 10'h May,2024.

2 3. C E RTTFI CATE O F N ON:D].SQ U-A LI TICAT].O-N OT .DIRX,CTORS

In compliance to SEBI . (Listing .Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
(Amendment) 2018 dated 09th May, 2018, Certificate from Non-Disqualification of
Directors was given by M/s S. Dalmiya & Associates., practicing company secretary.
The Certificate from Non-Disqualification of Directors in prescribed format under
Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

is given as ANNEXURE- V which forms the part of this report. The observations made

in the report are self explanatory.

24. CSRrOBATB"m-SmL 3E$pAN$SIrny_ {e$"BIpgLIey

During the year ended 31st March,2024, your Company has spent Rs.11,50,000/-
(approx) on various CSR activities as per laid down under schedule VII of section 135

of the Companies Act, 2013. The annual report on CSR activities, in terms of Rule 8 of
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility, Policy) Ru1es, 2014, is provided in
ANNEXURE-VI forming part of this teport. During the year under review, our CSR



programs were oriented toward varioug activiiies for hunger, Poverty & Malnutrition,
Promotion education to children and other various allied activities. The Corporate

Social Responsibility Policy of the Company as adopted by the Board of Directors is

available on Company's website (http://www.ballyjute.com4. The composition of CSR

Committee is disclosed in the report on corporate governance forming part of this

report.

2s. AUprT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to composition of audit committee are included in the corporate

governance reports which form the part of this report.

25. TAMTLTARTZATION PROGR"AMMIS rOR BOARD l[rMBE&S

The Board members are provided witlr necebsary documents, reports and internal
policies to enable them to familiarize with the Company's procedures and policies.

Periodic presentations are made at the Board and Board Committee Meetings, on

business and performance updates of the Company.

27 r0R
AND INDEPEND-EICE OF A DIRECTQB:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has Formulated the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors in terms

of provisions of section 178(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR)

Regulations, 2015.

Nomination and remuneration committee (NRC) identify persons who are qualified to
become directors in accordance with.the criteria laid down. The NRC review the
composition and diversity of Board, keeping in view the requirement of Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI( LODR) Regulations, 2015 and recommend to the Board

appointment/ reappointment of eligible candidates including their terms of
appointment and remuneration.

28. ANNUAL EYALUATTON Or BOARD.PSRTQRMANCS.ANp PERqQRMANCE
oF rTS COMMTISEES ANp pTRECTOR$:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised the criteria for
evaluation of the independent directors, the Board and its committees. The Board has

carried out annual evaluation of its own perforrnance, and that of its committees and
individual directors.



29.BEMW
Details of the Remuneration Policy are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

30. CREDIT RATING

India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) has taken the following rating actions on Bally

]ute company Limited's (BICL) debt instruments:

3I. DISCLO$IJRE ON ESTABLISHMHNT OF VIGII, N4ECHANISM

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower policy, to provide a formal mechanism to
the Directors and employees to report their concern about unethical behavior, actual

or suspected fraud or violation of the Company's code of conduct or ethics policy. The

policy provide for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of
the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the chairman of the Audit
Committee. It is affirmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied access to
the Audit Committee. The Whistle blower policy is hosted on company's website
(www.ballyjute.com)

32" PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYHES

Particulars of employees and other details in terms of section 197 of the Companies
Act 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 from part of this Report. However, in terms of
section 136(1) of the Companies Act 2013 the Report and Accounts are being sent to
the members and others entitled thereto, excluding these statements. The Annexure
are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company
during working hours on working days for a period of 2l days before the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Ho\Mever, a copy of the statement shall be made available to
any members on demand.

Instrument Type Rating/Outlook Rating action
Fund based Limit IND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Fund based Limit IND BBB/Stable Assigned

Non-Fund-based Limit IND A3+ Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Term Loan IND'BBB/Stable Assigned



33. PJ sC L-QSU_B$i*UNDEB" S qXUAt H ARASSM Elt{T os' wo_M $X{_AT w o RK P tAC H
HiBITI N RED

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harrasement during financial
year 2023-2024.

34. SrAruroRY AUDITQB$

As per the provisions of section 139 read with section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013

and Rules made there under M/s. R. Kothari & Co.LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(FRN: 3070698/8300266) was appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a

period of 5 (Five) consecutive years (i.e. 01st April, 2022 to 31st March,2027).

Further, consequent to amendment of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2018

appointment of auditor need not require to ratification at every Annual General

Meeting during the period from 01" April, 2022 to 31,, March ,2027 .

35. TN'TIRNAI AI'DITORS

The Company has appointed M/s Srimal Jain & Co. as the Internal Auditors in the year
in 2018 for undefined period.

36. COST AUDTTORS

As per directives of the Central Government and in pursuance to the provision of
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under, the
Company is required to carry out an audit of Cost Records maintained by the
Company in respect of each financial year. As per recommendation of chairman of
Audit Committee, M/s B.G Chowdhury & Co., Cost Accountants, has been appointed
as cost Auditors to conduct the audit of Cost Records of our Company for the
Financial Year 2024-25. The .remuneration proposed to be paid to them,
recommended for ratification by the Audit Committee, require ratification by the
shareholders of the Company. In view of this, your ratification for payment of
remuneration to cost auditors is being sought at the ensuing AGM.

37. 1J!D ASSOCTATES

There is no company which has become or ceased to be the Company's subsidiary,
joint venture or associate company during the year. The Company does not have any
subsidiary, joint venture or associate company as on 3lst March ,2024.



38. DI RACTORS_ RESPONSIBILIry ST ATAMEI\rI

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, it is
hereby stated to the best of our knowledge and belief that:

a) in the preparation of the annqal accciunts for the financial year ended 31st

March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along

with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 3lst March, 2024 ar,d of the profit /loss of the Company for that period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e/ The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

0 The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal fi.nancial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively. While affirming this, your directors confirm the
following:

i. Systems have been laid down to ensure that the transactions in the
comPany are executed in accordance with management's authorization in
adherence to policies and procedures adopted by the Company.

ii. The existing assets of the Company are verified at reasonable intervals and
appropriate actions are taken with respect to differences, if any. Access to
assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authorization
and no assets of the company are allowed to be used for personal pu{poses,
except in accordance with terms of employmenr or only if specifically
authorized.



Systems and procedures exist to maintain checks and balances and to
prevent and detect frauds and errors.

tv. Proper frameworks exist to ensure that all transactions are recorded to
facilitate timely and effective preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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ANNEXURtr- l=TqT

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Report containing the details of Corporate Govemance System and process at Bally
Jute Company Limited pursuant to Part C of schedule V of SEBI ( Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 20I 5 "Listing Regulations"

I. COVltlAl'{Y'S PHI[,OSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

BALLY JUTE COMPANY LTD "THE COMPANY" believes in cultivating the
virtues of good corporate govemance across the organization to attain sustained growth
through fair and ethical dealing. In pursuit to this objective, the Company is guided by a
strong emphasis to uphold the integrity, transparency and accountability in all its affairs.
The Company's code of corporate govemance is aimed to protect the long term interest
of all its stakeholders.

2. I}OAITD OF I}IIIECTOR :

a) Composition of the Board

The conrposition of Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of
non-e\ecutive directors in conformity with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as "the Act") and Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred to as "SEBI Listing Regulations"). Presently, the Board of Directors
consists of 4 (Four) Directors with 2 (Two) Non-Executive (Independent) Directors,
1 (One) Non-Executive Director, 1 (One) Non-Executive woman Director.

The Non-Executive Directors are liable to retird'by rotation.

All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of
the Companies Act 2013 andrules framed there under and as per Listing Regulation.

None of the Director on the Board is a member of more than l0 Committee or Chairman
of more than 5 Committees across all the Companies in which he/she is a Director. None
of the Directors holds office in more than 20 companies and in more than 10 public
companies.

b

b



b) Attendance of Directors at Board Nleetings and last Annual General Meeting
along rvith no. of other Directorship(s) and other Board Committee
chairmanship(s)/ Membership(s) held as on 31't March 2024.

*In case of committees, only two committe,es, viz. the Audit Committee and the
Stakeholder' s Relationship Committee are considered.

**The directors of the Company does not hold directorship in any other listed entity.

c) Expertise and Skills of the Board of Directors

The Br-rard of Directors of the Company are required to uphold ethical standards of
integritr and probitl' and are required to have expertise, experience and core knowledge
in the sectors reler,ant for the growth of the Company.

The Board members of the Company are holding such skills, expertise and competencies
that aliou them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

=

Name of the
Directors

Position Attendance Particulars No. of other directorship(s) and other Board
committee membership(s) / chairmanship(s)
held

At Board
Meeting
(s)

At last AGM
held on

0s109t2023

Other
Directorship(s)

Committee
Membership(s)

Committee
Chairmanship(s)

Pradip Debnath

lResign from 0l.l1.24)
rD (NED) l0 Yes 2 0 0

Ajit Kumar Jain

iAppt from 05.09.24)
rD (NED) 9 Yes 5 0 0

Nibedita Majumdar NED t6 Yes Nil 0 Nil
Dipankar Sarkar rD (NED) t6 Yes 1 I Nil
Shyam Sundar Singh NED I6 Yes 7 Nil Nil

Finance Leadership in Corporate/ business finance is an important and inevitable
function and efficient financial management is crucial for success and
sustenance.. It iesults in proficiency in financial management,
procurement and utilisation of funds and controlling the financial
activities and management of lnancial resources of the Company.

Strategy and
Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in
guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain
environments.

Global
Business

Understanding, of global business dynamics, across various
geographical markets with an understanding of industry verticals,
regulatory jurisdictions, economic conditions, cultures and a broad

on market
Leadership Leadership experience leads to maximize efficiency and to achieve

Company goals understandlqg the opportunities and threats,

v
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b) Attendance of Directors at Board l\Ieetings and last Annual General Meeting
along rvith no. of other Directorship(s) and other Board Committee
chairmanship(s)/ Membership(s) hetcl as on 3l't March 2024.

*In case of committees, only trvo committees, viz. the Audit Committee and the

Stakeholder's Relationship Committee are considered.

**The directors of the Company does not hold directorship in any other listed entity.

c) Expertise and Skills of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Company are required to uphold ethical standards of
integritl and probity and are required to have expertise, experience and core knowledge
in the sectors relevant for the growth of the Company.

The Board members of the Company are holding such skills, expertise and competencies
that allou'them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

Name of the
Directors

Position Attendance Particulars No. of other directorship(s) and other Board
committee membership(s) / chairmanship(s)
held

At Board
Meeting
(s)

At last AGM
held on

0s10912023

Other
Directorship(s)

Committee
Membership(s)

Committee
Chairmanship(s)

Pradip Debnath
(Resign from 0l.l I .24)

rD (NED) l0 Yes 2 0 0

Ajit Kurnar Jain
(Appt from 05.09.24)

rD (NED) 9 Yes 5 0 0

Nibedita Majumdar NED t6 Yes Ni1 0 Nil
Dipankar Sarkar rD (NED) t6 Yes 1 I Nil
Shyam Sundar Singh NED t6 Yes 7 Nil Nil

Finance Leadership in Corporate/ business finance is an important and inevitable
function and efficient financial management is crucial for success and
sustenance.. It iesults in 'proficiency in financial management,
procurement and utilisation of funds and controlling the financial
activities and management of financial resources of the Company.

Strategy and
Planning

Appreciation of long-term trends, strategic choices and experience in
guiding and leading management teams to make decisions in uncertain
environments.

Global
Business

Understanding, of global business dynamics, across various
geographical markets with an understanding of industry verticals,
regulatory jurisdictions, economic conditions, cultures and a broad
perspective on global market opportunities.

Leadership Leadership experience leads to maximize efficiency and to achieve
Company goals by understanding the opportunities and threats,

>



processes, strategic planning and risk management and discussing the
financial performance and long-term growth.

Procurement,
Sales and
Marketing

Experience in procurement of raw materials, production aspects,

marketing technical aspect of production, quality control, purchase
management and developing strategies to grow sales and market share,

bui ld brand. awareness .4nd enhzrnce Company reputation.
Governance Experience in developing governance practices, serving the best

interests of all stakeholders. maintaining board and management
accountability, building long term effective stakeholder engagements,
driving corporate ethics and values and observing appropriate
governance practices.

Administration Leadership in administration of a Company, results in long-term growth
by planning, organizing, directing and controlling the operations,
creating rules and regulations and making decisions towards achieving a

common goal or objective of the Company

v
The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for the
effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

d) Number of Board meetings held and dates on which held:

During the year SIXTEEN Bbard meetings were held on 05th April'2023,
11tl May'2023, 22"d May'2023. O,"d June'2023, 30th Jwrc'2023,
llth Jul1,'2023. 11th August'2023.05th September'2023,261h September,2023,
10'h octoberl2023 ,. 13th Nor,ember'2023 , 20'h NJr.-u..'2023,
I 9m December' 2023, I 3th February' 2024. 09th March' 2024 & 2ft March' 2024.

e) Responsibilities
The Board's prime concentration is on strategy, policy and control, delegation of
po\\er and specifying approvals that remain in the Board's domain besides review
of corporate performance and reporting to shareholders.

I) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se:
No director is inter se, related to any other director on the Board.

g) Board Committees:
The Board Committees are.set up undelthe formal approval of the Board to carry
out clearll'defined roles which are considered to be performed by members of the
Board as a part ofgood governance practice. The Board supervises the execution
of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their action. The
minutes of the meetings of all Committees were placed before the Board, and
were duly taken on record.

h) Number of Shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive
directors:
None of the directors holds any shares or convertible instruments in the Company.

v
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D Weblink for familiarisation programmes imparted to independent director is
disclosed:
The Company has a familiarization programmes for independent directors and the
same is available on the website of the Company (www.ball),jute.com). The
present independent directors are well conversant with the operations of Jute
industry. the Company's model and their responsibilities as independent directors.
However the familiarizationprograrnme.u'ill be imparted as and when considered
by the board.

j) Other provisions:

It is hereby confirmed that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the
independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing
Regulations and are independent of the management. None of the independent
directors have resigned before the expiry of their tenure of appointment. The
Company has developed proper systems to enable the Board of Directors to
periodically review compliance repons prepared by the Company in respect of
laws applicable to the Company. Corrective steps are taken by the Company to
rectify any instance of non-compliance. The Board of Directors have devised
plans for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to senior
management level.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDE\T DIRECTORS:

A separate meeting of Independent Directors of the Company, without the attendance of
\on-lndependent Directors and members of the Management was held on
29'h December. 2023 as required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act2013 (Code of
Independent Directors). At the Meeting, the Independent Directors:

Revien'ed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole,

Revieu'ed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the
views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors; and Assessed the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar and Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain attended the Meeting of Independent
Directors. Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain chaired tfue meeting.

None of the Non-Executive Directors and Independent Director of the Company has any
material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company.

I

,
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3. i\t DIT ('()\Ml'Tl;.Y.:

a) Brief Descrirrtion of Terms of Reference

The Company has duly constituted Audit Committee in compliance with provisions of
section 177 of the companies Act,2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure requirement).Regulhtions, 2015'as amended form time to time.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the Section 177 of the
Companies Act 2013 and Regulation l8 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
requirement) Regulations, 2015. The broad functions of Audit Committee:

a. To discuss and review the comment on Internal Audit Reports submitted by
Company's Intemal Auditor.

b. To review the progress on implementation of the suggestions made by Internal
Auditors.

c. To discuss and review the observations of Internal Auditors, cost control
measures, statutory compliances etc. in various functional areas.

d. Recommending the appointment and. removal of auditors and fixing their
remuneration. ',

Revierv with the Management the annual, half-yearly and quarterly financial
statements before submission to the Board.

b) Comrrosition. Name of Members and Chairman.

The composition of the Audit Committee is given below:

Name & Designation Category Number of Meeting

Attended

Mr. Pradip Debnath (Chairman)

(Resigned from 01 .11.2023)

Independent Director J

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain (Chairman)

(Appt from 05.09.2023)

lndeperident Director 4

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (Member) Non Executive Director 7

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (Member) Independent Director 7



C) MEETINGS

During the year Seven Audit Committee meetings were held on 22nd May 2023,
22"d iwreZtiZl,O3'd August 2023,15tr September 2-023,27ft October2023,27n'Jarutary
2024,21't March 2024.

4, N OT1 I N'AI'IOI'{ AI\{I) ITE LI T,IIT ERAT I O N CO M M I :I'T EIi

The Company has duly constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in
compliance with provisions of section 1{8 of the companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18

of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirement) Regulations,20l5.

a) Brief Description of Terms of Reference

b. Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down,
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and carry out evaluation
of every Director's performance.

c. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a Director and recommend to the Board Policy relating to the
remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

d. Formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

e. Devise a policy on Board Diversity.

b) Comnosition. Name of Members and Chairman

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is given below:

Name & Designation Category Number of

Meeting

Attended

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar, (Member) Independent Director I

Mr. Pradip Debnath,(Chairman)

(Resigned from 01 .11.2024)

Independent Director I

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (Member) Non Executive Director I

Y

v

a. Make recommendations regarding the composition of the Board, identify
Independent Directors to be inducted to the Board form time to time and take
steps to refresh the composition of the Board from time to time.
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C) MEETINGS

During the y'ear ONE Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held on
22nd [une-2023.

d) PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has devised the criteria for
evaluation of the independent directors, the Board and its committees. The Board carried
out annual evaluation of independbnt d,irectors'on the basis of criteria laid down. The
evaluation was done by the Board of Direbtors except the directors who was evaluated.

5. REI\,IT]]\{ERATTON TO DIRECTORS

a) Remuneration Policy

The Company has adopted a Remuneration Policy for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees, pursualt to the provisions of the Act 2013 and SEBI
LODR Regulations.

The philosophy for remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and all other
employees of the Company is based on the commitment of fostering a culture of
leadership u'ith trust. The Remuneration Policy' of the Company is aligned to this
philosophi'.
The Nomination and Remuneration.Committee has considered the followjng factors while
formulatin_e the Policy:

(i) Determine the level and composition of remuneration that will attract, retain and
motivate directors, KMPs, senior managerial personnel and other employees of the
Company.

(ii) Provide a well balanced and performance based remuneration package taking into
account industry standard and relevant corporate regulations.

(iii)Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks.

b) Details of Remuneration & Sittine fees

The Non-Executive Directors are remunerated by way of sitting fees. The sitting fees
payable to the Non-Executive Diroctors is based on the number of meetings of the Board
attended by them. Directors'of the Company were paid a sitting fee as ,rid., during the
Financial Year 2023-24 for each meeting of the Board attended by them.
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Directors are paid sitting fees at the rate of Rs. 1 000/- for attending each Board meetings.

6. STAI(E IIOLDE}TS REI,A IONSIIIP CO}1MIT\"VY,

a) Name of non-qIeculnle direetor heading the committee :

The members and chairman of the committee are:-

Mr. Pradip Debnath (chairman)

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

During the year One Stake holders Relationship Committee meetings were held on 22nd

June,2023.

b) Name and designation of compliance officer

Mr. Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, the Company Secretary of the Company is the compliance
off,rcer.

c) Investorscomnlaints

No complaints were received from the InvestorVShare holders.

7. FINANCE COMMITTUE

A committee of the Board' constituted in year 2014 and re-constituted thereafter to
borrou'money up to the extent of Rs.200 crores and to give guarantee or provide security
in respect of loan taken by others up to the limit of Rs.200 crores. The Committee was
constituted to align with the requirements of Companies Act 2013. The Committee was
re-constituted with effect from 05th September, ZOiZ witttmembers as Mr. Shyam Sundar
Singh and Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain. The compositions of the committee are:-

Mr Shyam Sundar Singh (Member)

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain (Member)

The Committee met Three times during the year under report on2010612023,0210912023,
and2011112023.

8. CORPORATE SOCTAL RESPONSIBILITY COMIIIITTEn (CSR)

a) Composition, name of memberi and chairperson



\,

The details of composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee with
name of members and chairperson are as follovvs:

Mr. Pradip Debnath (chairman) (Resigned from 0l .11.2024)

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal (Secretary)

During the year One Corporate Social Responsibility Commiffee meetings were held on
01't April, 2023.

9, G}]NERAI, I}ODY MENTINGS

a) Details of the last three Annual General Meetinss held are as under :

Financial Year Location Date Time Special
Resolution

\5

2020-21 -do-

2011-ll -do-

2022-23 -do-

b) POSTAL BALLOT

06.09.202r 1 1.00 A. M None

0s.09.2022 10.00 A. M None

0s.09.2023 10.00 A. M One

No special resolution was passed last year through postal ballot and special resolution is
proposed to be passed in the current year but such item ofbusiness are not covered under
section 110 of the companies' act 2013 . Further as per notification dated 13th June,
2078, the companies having members up to two hundred are not required to transact any
business through postal ballot.

r0. coD[] or coNDticT :

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company. All the Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code for 2022-23. A declaration to this
effect duly signed by manager forms part of this Annual Report.
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The details of composition of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commiuee with
name of members and chairperson are as follows:

Mr. Pradip Debnath (chairman) (Resigned from 0l.l1.2024)

Mrs. Nibedita Majumder (member)

Mr. Dipankar Sarkar (member)

Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal (Secretary)

During the year One Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings were held on
01't April, 2023. 

.

(), $I'NE,RAI", BODY MENT1NGS

a) Details of the last three Annual General Meetings held are as under :

Financial Year Location Date Time Special
Resolution

5

2020-21 -do- 06.09.2021 I 1.00 A. M None

202t-22 -do- 05.09.2022 10.00 A. M None

2022-23 -do- 05.09.2023 10.00 A. M One

b) POSTAL BALLOT

No special resolution was passed last year through postal ballot and special resolution is
proposed to be passed in the current year but such item ofbusiness are not covered under
section 110 of the companies' act 2013 . Further as per notification dated 13th June,
2018, the companies having members up to two hundred are not required to transact any
business through postal ballot.

10. corrli o]'cot\DUC'I' :

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior
Management of the Company. All the Board Members and Senior Management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code for 2022-23. A declaration to this
effect duly signed by manager forms part of this Annual Report.



I I. M};ANS OT CO]}IMTINICA I'K)N

The Company had submitted its Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results to the
Stock Exchange soon after its approval by the Board and published the same in News
Papers as required by listing Regulation.

The quarterly, half yearly and annual working results of the company are published in
newspapers like Financial Express (English) and Arthik Lipi (Bengali).

The Company has its own functional website urwv.ballyjute.com where information
about the Company's Quarterly, Half Yearly and Yearly financial results, annual report,
distribution of shareholding at the end of each quarter required to be disclosed under
Regulation 30(8) and 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation,2015 are regularly updated.

12. GINERAL SIIAREI{OLDIIR INFOR}IATION

a) Annual General Mebtine

42nd Annual General Meeting will be held on 5th september'2024 at 10.00 A.M.
at its Registered Office at 5, Sree Charan Sarani, Bally, Howrah -711201.

b) Financial Calendar (2024-2025):
(tentative)

O

Quarter ending June 30,2024
Quarter ending September 30,2024
Quarter ending December 3I,2024
Quarter ending March 3I,2025

: On or before 14th August,2024
: On or before l4th November,2024
: On or before 14th February,2025
: On or before l4th May,2025

c) Date of Book Closins :

306 August,2}23 to.O5ft S'epter4ber,Z62l @oth day inclusive)

d) Dividend

The board has not recommended any dividend on Equity shares.

e) Listins on Stock Exchanse : 1) The calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.
(Intimation to stock Exchange for delisting of shares vide its letter dated 06.08.2020
and subsequent submission on various dates)

0 Demat ISIN - Not Allotted

g) Resistrar and Share Transfer Agent :

. ABS Consultants Prrt. Ltd.
"Stephen House", Room No.99
6th Floor, 4, B.B.D. Bag (East), ..

$
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Kolkata-700 001.

h) Status of Dematerialization of Shares as on 31st March. 2024.

As on 3l't March,2024, entire Equity Shares of the Company are being held in
physical Form by the Shareholders.

i) Distribution of Shareholdine as on 3Lst March. 2024

i) Catesory of Shareholders as on 31st March, 2024.

k) Stock Market Data - There was no trading during the year under review and
thus High / Low market price data for Stock performance in comparison to broad
based indices can not be made.

l) Share Transfer Svstem -During the period under review, no complaint was
received from the shareholders. No share transfers were pending as on 3ltt March,
2024.

m) Resistered Office 5, Sree Charan Sarani, Bally, Howrah-7l1201.

n) Plant Location -do-

o) Address for correspondence :

Slab of Shareholdings
No. of

Shareholders otlo No. of Shares olto

1- 500 15 37.5 590 0.004

501 - 1000 I 2.5 638 0.005
1001 - 2000

2001 - 3000 12 30 31375 0.24

3001 - 4000

4001 - 5000

5001 - 10000
'10001 and above 12 30 12875056 99.75

Total 40 100 12907659 100

Category No. of Shares % of Shareholdings
Promoters 12882556 99.81

I nstitutional I nvestors

Bodv Corporate

lndian Public 25103 0.19
NRls / OCBs

Total 12907659 100

I3. CIIO / CT'O CER'I'MTICA?IION

-do-
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As required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations. 2015, the Managing Director/Manager
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the Board regarding
review of financial statement fdr the year under review, compliance with the
accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations, maintenance of internal
control for financial reporting and accounting policies.

14. WI{IS'ILF; Ill,0trYt1llt POLICY I VI(;lL }.llllcflANISM
The Company has an established mechanism for Directors / Employees to report
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the
Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It also provides for adequate safeguards against
victimization of Directors/ employees who avail the mechanism.

None of the employee(s) has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

I5. CREDIT IIA'I'IX{;

India Ratings and Research (Ind-Ra) has taken the following rating actions on Bally
Jute Company Limited's (BICL) debt instrumenrs:

I 6. OTHEII, DISCLOSTJII.ES

a) As required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, related party transactions
are placed before the Audit Committee for approval. Wherever required, prior
approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an omnibus basis for continuous
transactions and the corresponding actual transactions become a subject of review
at subsequent Audit Committee Meetings.

All the related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year
were on an arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business and in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act,2013 and the
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 there were no materially significant related
party transaction which may have conflict with interest of the company or which
are required to be reported in form AOC 2.

The Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions for purpose of
identification and monitoring of such transactions. The said policy 

-ani 
other

Instrument Tvoe

-

Ratine/Oudook

-

Ratins action
Fund based Limit IND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Fund based Limit IND BBB/Stable Assigned

Non-Fund-based Limit IND ,A.3* Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBB/Stable Affirmed
Term Loan IND BBBiStabie Assigned

.L
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policies and code of conduct adopted by the Board are displayed on the website of
the Company (www.ballyj ute.corn).

Disclosures as required under AS-18 have been made in Note 33 to the financial
statements for the year ended 3 1st March ,2024

b) No penalty has been imposed by any stock exchange, SEBI or SEC, nor has there
been any instance of non-compliance with any legal requirements, or on matters
relating to the capital market over the last three years

c) Disclosure of compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory corporate
governance requirements :

The Company has made compliance with corporate governance requirements as

specified in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement / Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b)
to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 read with schedule V to listing
Regulations.

Mandatory requirements: The Companv has complied with all mandatory
requirements under the Listing Agreement iListing Regulations.

For and on behalf of the Board
BALLY ruTE COMPANY LIMITED
C\/- \c.r*^-a^ y

./
Place: Bally'
Date : 03.07.2024

AJIT KUMAR JAIN
DIRECTOR

DN: 00526787
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In terms of the Listing Regulations, I hereby confirm and declare that, all the Board
Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance
with the respective Code of Conduct, as applicable to them for the year ended 31st
March,2023.

For and on behalf of the Board
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED

'./
q-> \c^^- T,

Place: Bally
Date : 03.07.2024

AJIT KUMAR JAIN
DIRECTOR

DIN: 00526787

(
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[Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20151

To
The Board of Directors
Bally Jute Company Ltd.

We, Shashi Prakash Purohit, Manager and Sanjay Kumar Agarwal, Chief Financial
Offrcer of Bally Jute Company Ltd (the Company") to the best of our knowledge and
belief certify that:

a) We had reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the
financial year ended on 31.03.2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and
beliel we state that:

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit
any material fact or contain any statements that might be misleading;

These statements together presdnt a true and fair view of the Company's
affairs and are in .o.pliur.. with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulation.

b) \\'e further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no
transactions entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Committee have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by
the Company.

d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we had evaluated the effectiveness of intemal control systems
of the company pertaining to financial reporting of the company and had
disclosed to the Auditors and Audit C. ommittee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal controls, if any, of *hich we are aware and the steps we have
taken or proposed to take to rectify these defrciencies.

e) We had indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to
the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting
during the year;

ll.

L
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ii. significant changes, if any, in the accounting polices during the year

and that the same has been disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having

significant role in the Company's intemal control system over the

financial reporting. ,, ._

Prakash Purohit SanjayPlace: Bally
Date:03.07.2024 (Manager) (Chief Financial Officer)

(

C



PRAMOD AGARWAL & CO.    BAGRI MARKET 
Practising Company Secretaries    71, CANNING STREET 
        4TH FLOOR, ROOM NO.C459 
        KOLKATA-700001 
        03348001953 

E-MAIL:pramod.agarwal2677@gmail.com 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF 
CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
 
To 
The Members of 
BALLY JUTE COMPANY LIMITED 
 
I   have  examined  the   compliance  of  conditions  of   Corporate  Governance   by  Bally  Jute 
Company  Limited  for  the year ended on March 31, 2024, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 
and  clauses  (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para  C, D and E of  Schedule V of the Securities 
and  Exchange  Board  of India  (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 
 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. 
My examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company 
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor 
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to explanation given to us, we 
certify that the company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 / Listing Agreements, to the 
extent applicable to the Company during the year under report. 
 
We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the company. 

 
 
Place:   Kolkata                                                                                For Pramod Agarwal & Co. 
Date :   03.07.2024                                                                                Company Secretaries 
 
 
                                                                                                                          Pramod Agarwal 
                                                                                                                              (Proprietor) 
                                                                                                                          C. P. No. : 4193 

UDIN : F005895F000662067  
 
 
 
 

PRAMOD 
AGARWAL

Digitally signed by 
PRAMOD AGARWAL 
Date: 2024.07.03 
18:27:17 +05'30'



[Pursuant to Section l3a(3Xm) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20141

', '

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

i. Steps taken or impact on Conservation of energy :

In the past few years, the Company has tried to improve energy
efficiency significantly by various measures. Steps taken to conserve

energy include:

l. At its plant, the Company has carried out various modifications in
layout to optimize energy consumption and reduce losses.

2. Energy efficient motors are being installed in order to optimize use of
Power.

3. In its plant and offices, the Company has replaced conventional light
fixtures with.energy efficient fixtures such as LED lights and tubes.

4. Optimization of machine speed, particularly in Spinning Frames and
S4A Looms.

5. Maintenance of all machines, including boilers and compressors to
make them energy efficient and minimize losses.

ii. Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:
The Company is making maximum use of natural lighting during day
time and gradually inducting safelux system to get the factory system
illuminated.

iii. Capital Investment on Energy Conservation Equipment The Company
has been making investment on continuous basis for the purpose of
energy conservation.

B. TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION

i. Efforts made towards Technology Absorption :

Efforts towards technology absorption included continued efforts for
Process improvements and installation of upgraded plant & machinery

ffi



to improve the efficiency, productivity and profitability of the

Company.

ii. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product

development or import substitution :

Improved productivity and automation process. Cost reduction has

however, been partly offset by the increase in cost of other input.

iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning of the financial year) :

1. The details of technology imported: The Company has not
imported any technology during the last three financial years.

2. Year of import: Not Applicable

3. Whether the technology has been fully absorbed: Not Applicable

4. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place,

and the reasons thereof : Not Applicable

iv. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS /OUTGO

Earnings Rs345.44/-

Outgo Rs2793.31/-































^S. 
Dalmiyu & Associutes

Company Secreturies

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISOUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant to Regulation 3a(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (l0xi) of tire SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To.
The Members of
Bally Jute Company Limited
5, Sree Charan Sarani,
Bally, Howrah- 7ll20l

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms. returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Bally Jute
Company Limited having CIN L51909W8f 982PLC035245 and having registered office at 5 Sree Charan Sarani Bally
Howrah-7ll20l (hereinafter referred to as'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause l0(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my infomration and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.rnca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the
Company & its officers, I hereby certifr that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the
Financial Year ending on 3l't March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as

Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Kolkata or any
such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. \o. \ame of Director DI\ Date of appointment in Companl'
I Nibedita Maiumder 07 t682t4 04105120r5

2 Shyam Sundar Singh 06763614 a5/03/2021
Dipankar Sarkar 08708069 26/0212020

4 Aiit Kumar Jain ao526787 05/a912023

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
csrtificate is neither an assuftrnce as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efliciency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S. Dalmiya & Associates
7

5
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l\+No. FI2046
COP No. 19603

Peer Review Cer. No.196912022

Place: Kolkata
Date:02.05.2024

LIDIN: F0 I 2046F0002927 33

Ee

76, Ashutosh Mukherjee Road, Kolkata- 700 025, Ph: +91 -9874316346
Email: sdalmiya.associates@gmail.com, Website: www.sdalmiyaassociates.com
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REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
(Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the act") read will rule 8 of Companies (CSR) Rules' 2014)

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programmes proposed to be undertaken. We believe in a responsible shared value

approach to augment industrial growth together with actions directed to create prosperity

among all our stakeholdbrs, employbes and the community at large. During the year, our

CSR programs were oriented towards various activities such as Eradicating hunger, poverty

& malnutrition.

The CSR activities of the Company are aligned with the activities specified in Schedule

VII of the Companies Act,2013.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

3. Provide the web-link where composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the Company :

httrr : //www.bally i ute.com

sl.
No

Name of Director
Designation/ Nature

of Directorship

Number of
meetings of

CSR Committee

held during the

year

Number of
meetings of CSR

Committee

attended during

the year.

1

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain

(Appt from 05.09.2023)

Independent Non-
Executive Director

- Chairman

0 0

2
Mr. Pradip Debnath

(Resigned from 0 1. 1 1.2023)

Independent Non-
Executive Director

- Chairman

1 1

I Mr. Dipankar Sarkar
Independent Non-
Executive Director

1 1

3 Mrs.Nibedita Majumdar
Non-Executive

Director
I I

4 Mr. Sanjay Kr. Agarwal Secretary 1 1



-
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of

sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014, if applicable (attach the report) : Not Applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set-off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount
required for set off for the financial year, if any.

sl.
No.

Financial
Year

Amount available for set-off from
preceding financial years (in Rs.)

Amount required to be

set-off for the financial
year, if any (in Rs.)

- Not Applicable as no amount is required to be set-off -

6. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years for the purpose of
computation of CSR [as per Section 135 (5)]: Rs. 5,66,65,548.331-

7. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 6 above) :

Rs. 1 1,33,3 I l/- (approx)

8. Details of CSR spent for the financial year : Rs. 1 1,50,000/-

a, Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 11,50,000/-**

** Note: - Company spent in CSRmore than2o/o i.e. 11,33,311/- during the current financial
year & it is in excess of Rs. 16,6891- (Rs. 11,50,000 - Rs. 11,33,311). Therefore, whole amount
to be considered as an expense and it is qot carry forward to the next year.

b. Amount unspent : NIL

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year : As per CSR Policy.

d. CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year. (in
Rs.)

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as per
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as

per second proviso to section
13s(s).

Amount. D.3te of
transfer.

Name of
the Fund

Amount. Date of
transfer.

1'1,50,000/- Nir ---N. A. - ---N. A. -- Nil ---N. A. -



9, In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the

reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report. N.A.

10. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and

monitoring of CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the

Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance

rvith CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

lh.t'\Crt^ ^o^^ ?h
Date :- 03.07.2024 Chairman of CSR Committee

-


